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/ OVO (S) Electricity Limited .

Strategic Report for the Period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020

The Directors present their report and audxted ﬁnancml statements of OVO (S) Electucxty Limited (the
"Company") for the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020.

ThlS Strategic Report has been plepaled in accordance with the requirements of Sectlon 414 of the Companies
Act 2006. Its purpose is to inform shareholders and help them assess how the Directors have perfonmed their
duty to pxomote the success of OVO (8) Electucny Limited.

The Business review sets out the main trends and factors undél\ymg the development and performance of the
Company during the period ended 31 December 2020, as well as those matters which are likely to affect .its
future development and performance.

1 Business review

The Conipany is a-private company limited by shares. The principal activity of the Company is-the supply of
electricity to domestic customers in Great Britain. At 31 December 2020 the Company supplied electricity to
3.26 million household accounts (3.25 million at 31 March 2020). .

The Company lS a wholly owned subsidiary of OVO (S) Energy Services Limited. On 15 January 2020, OVO
completed the transformational acquisition. of SSE plc's GB domestic retail business (SSE Energy Services
Group Limited, now trading as “OVO (S) Energy Services Limited”) including OVO (S) Electricity Limited.

OVO’s investment in scalable operating platforms, smart data capabilities and innovative technology combined

with SSE’s excellence at scale makes the two businesses a great fit. Combining the best of both our businesses

will enable us to bring OVO’s energy technology to millions more customers to- provide a market leadmg
customer experience.

The profit and loss account for the period ﬁom I April 2020 to 31 December 2020 is set out on page 16. The
reporting period for the Company was shortened from 1 April to 31 March previously to I April to 31 Decembel
in the current period to align with the reporting period for OVO group of companies. Subsequent periods will
_end on the same day-and month in future years. As a result, the amounts presented in the current peuod'
financial statements are not entirely comparable.

The profit after taxation for the period from | Aprit 2020 to 31 Deccmbel 2020 amounted to £8.0m (Year ended
31 March 2020: loss of £310.5m). This reflects exceptional costs incurred in the period of £60.7m (Year ended
31 March 2020:" £400.0m) associated with the integration of the Company with the wider OVO group,
impairment of assets, recognition of an onerous contract and certain restructuring costs. The balance sheet at 31 -
December 2020 is set out on page |8 and indicates net liabilities of £432.4m (31 March 2020: £434.0m).
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OVO (S) Electricity Limited

Strategic Report for the Period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020 (continued)

1 Business review (continued)

Integration with the OVO Gr oup

OVO acquired SSE Energy Services Group Limited and its subsidiaries in early 2020 to combme its scale with
OVO’s digital capabilities and enable millions more customers to experience the latest technology to
decarbonise their homes while delivering best va[ue to customers.

Even befone the completion of the acquxsltlon the SSE Energy Services Group had already begun its Joumey
towards a more dlgltally -led, customer-centr: ic o:gamsahon

The Company will i'emove complexities and duplication by combining SSE Energy Services Group and OVO’s
home services, lettings business, metering, commercial efforts and support functions. It will continue to digitise
legacy SSE processes and move the business onto a common set of systems to meet the demands of an
increasingly dlgllal consumer and a more agile wonkfonce .

The principal stlalegy for the penod focused on customer retention as we mteglated SSE Energy Services into
the OVO famnly . .

Delivering the benefits of smart metering .

The smart meter roll-out is more than just a regulatory obligation; it replesents an opponumty to tlansfoun the
relationship between customers, their energy supplier and theé energy they consume. -
Smart meters. are a step on the path to an intelligent and sustainable energy network that will free us from our
dependence on fossil fuels. They enable the adoption of game-changing technologies that will transform the way
we live and consume energy. We will provide our customers with an effortless transition to smart homes,
offering the installation, management and maintenance of smart energy solutions including electric vehicle .
charge points, smart boilers,.smart thermostats and in-home batteries.

Momentum in SMART stalled slightly due to the coronavirus, despite continuing'to install in all nglOllS in line -

“with 1egulatlons to take all reasonable steps to roll out smart meters to our-customers.

Thloughout 202| OVO Group w1ll continue to look to seize the opportunities presented by smart metels by -
harnessing smart data to engage and empower customers whlle also launching new, smart-enabled services and
propositions.

“COVID-19

Throughout the pandemic, our priority has been to ensure the safety of our people whllst continuing to support
all of our customers, particularly those that are vulnerable. Our investmeit in technology and shared platforms
has ensured a high level of connectivity which means we are able to mové to remote operations with mmlmal
disruption.

However, unfortunately COVID-19 has impacted our commercial performance'in 9-month period ending-31

"December 2020, due to some key sales channels within the business experiencing significant interruption as a .

result of the lockdown.. The most.notable of these is the impact on our ablllty to continue the roli-out of smart
metels to customels
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OVO (8S) Electr lc1ty Limited

Strategic Report for the Perlod from 1 Apl‘ll 2020 to 31 December 2020 (contmued)

1 Business review (continued) ' ‘

COVID-19 (continued) :

The coronavirus meant we had to navigate lockdown restrictions whilst séeking to optimise SMART installs and
maintain service for customers to suppost them through,the pandemic. The coronavirus pandemic has changed
the way tonsumers engage with their energy providers and think about their homes. Many of our customers
have permanently changed their behaviour and are increasingly going online and using digital tools to serve
themselves. Dmmg the 9-month period ending 31 December 2020 we saw an increase in the number of our
members engagmg with us-online thr ough dlgltal channels.

Many have also learnt that they can work from home and may be considering how to wonk more ﬂexnbly n the
future. Their appreciation of a safe, low carbon home has never been greater.

The Company's plans to continue integrate with OVO's system capability and enhancing the opeutmg model to
support a larger customer base in the future.

Plan Zero

Plan Zero is our response to the climate crisis, based on a thowugh .assessment not only of our own carbon
footprint but also the broader impacts of all our products and services. Our goal is to drive progress to zero

* carbon living. Plan Zero sels out how we will achieve this goal by 2030. The UK government has recognised the

urgency of this situation. It has set out a greenhouse gas. emissions target of net-zero by 2050, making it the

world’s first major economy to commit to real progress. But how we get.there is up to us. At. OVO we, want to

move even faster.to create a world wnthout carbon. We are calling our new direction Plan Zero.

For full details, please visit https://ovo.com/planzero/

2 Principal risks and uncertainties

The Directors of the Company acknowledge that they have responsibility for the systems of internal control and
risk management and for monitoring their effectiveness. The purposes of these systems are to manage, rather
than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, to provide reasonable assurance as to the
" quality of management information and to maintain proper control over the income, expenditure, assets and
liabilities of the Company. No system of control can, however, provide absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. Accordingly, the Directors have regard to what conuols,lin their judgement, are
appropriate to the Company's businesses, to the materiality -of the risks mhelent in these businesses, and to the
relative costs and benefits of implementing specific controls.

Control is maintained through an organisation structure with clearly defined responsibilitics, authority levels and
lines of 1'ep01ting, the appointment of suitably qualified staff in specialised business areas; and continuing
investment in high quality information systems. These controls are subject to periodic review as to their
implementation and continued suitability. '

The main risks which OVO (S) Electricity Limited could face are as follows:
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\ . . OVO (S) Electricity Limited

Strategic Report for the Period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020 (contimied)

2 Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)
*  Competition impacting on volumes sold;
. Exposure to volatility in wholesale elect1101ty prices;
+ Payment default from trade debtors;
+ Interest rates, inflation and liquidity; ) -
+ « Economic and Govemment legulatlon and '
. Wcather conditions varying significantly from normal seasonal trends.

The Board reviews and agrees policies for addxessmg each of these risks. There is relatlvely little exposure to
foreign currency. risk as the United Kingdom is the Company's main area of operation. If wholesale power is
contracted in foreign currency or indexed to foreign currency, it is policy to hedge all material purchases
through the use of foreign currency swaps and forward rate contracts. There is always a risk of payment default
from trade debtors and comprehensive credit vetting and effective payment terms are exercised for all
significant customer accounts. Good payment discipline is achieved in the domestic market by use of direct
debit budget schemes. There is also the risk -of mechanical or process failure in the Company's operations. Any
material failure in the Company's licensed operations in electricity supply is particularly significant. Operating
'risk is addressed through the Company's focus on seeking opeiatlonal excellence and on maintaining the highest
standards of safety and quahty The Company is exposed to economic regulation and government policy. There
are management structures in place to mitigate, influence and respond to such developments, and to engage with
the Industry Regulator, government ministers and officials, and other key bodies. .

- There are established procedures in place for regular budgetmg and reporting of financial information. The
.. Company's performance is reviewed by the OVO Group Board and the Group Executive Committee. Reports

include variance analysis and projected forecasts of the period compared to approved budgets and non-financial
performance indicators. There are Company policies in place covering a wide range of issues and risks such as
financial authorisations, - IT procedures, health, safety and environmental risks, crisis management, and a.policy

" on ethical principles. The effectiveness of the Company's systems of internal control is monitored by the internal

audit department which distributes reports and, where applopnate action plans to senior managers, Directors ’
and the extemal auditors.

/
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OVO (S) Electricity Limited

Strategic Report for the Period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020 (co_nting‘ed)

N

3 Financial risk management

The Cdmpanys activities exposé it to a variety of financial risks including comumodity price risk, 'c1edit risk and
"liquidity risk. Risk management is carried out by the OVO Group Risk Managemcnt Committee, under policies
approved by the. Directors and the Group management team.

Commodity price risk
The Company manages commodity price usk by secunng electncnty undel forward contracts and by supplymg
“the majouty of customets on fixed price contracts. -

C'r ‘edit risk ‘
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company 1f a customer f'uls to mectits contlactual obligations.

The Company‘s principal financial assefs are trade and other debtors. The amounts presented in the balance

sheet are net of expected credit losses, and the carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum

exposure. The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large

number of customers. The Company manages credit risk relating to trade debtors and accrued: inconie by

momtoung the ageing of outstanding balances regularly and ‘depending on the business units, assessing the
creditworthiness of a new customer before trade commences. .

Liguidity risk :
L\qmdlty visk is the risk that the. Company will not be able to meet its financial obhgat\ons as Lhey fall due. .

The Group management team uses short and long-term cash flow forecasts to manage liquidity risk. Forecasts
are” supplemented by sensmvnty analysis which is used to assess funding adequacy for at least a [2 .month
period.

‘4 Key performance indicators

The Directors believe that the following key financial and other performance .indicators will provide
shareholders with sufficient information to assess how effectively the Company is performing,.

Period from 1
April 2020 to. Year ended 31

Uit 31 December  March 2020

) » 2020
Electricity supplied to average household - - ‘ kWh 2,446.0v 3,509.0.
~ Domestic electricity‘custome’rs'(as at period end) o millions 33 - . 33
Gross profit o £m 215.9 273.3
Adjusted EBITDA* . £m ©90.7° 60.5
 Net liabilities ' A :  £m 4324y - (434.0)

*Earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation, amortisation and exceptional expenses excluding fair value gains on derivatives.
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OVO (S) Electricity Limited

Strategic Report for the Period from 1 Apfil 2020 to 31 De_cemberA 2020 (continued)

5 -S172 Statement

Stakeholders are at the heart of our strategy and business model. Engaging with them helps us- to understand
their evolvirig needs and informs our strategic decision-making. In light of our purpose and our strategy to
create a world without carbon and create long term value for customers, our Directors take steps to understand
the needs and priorities of each stakeholder group and do so via a number of mediums, including by direct
engagement or via committees and forums. The relevance of each stakeholder may change depending on the
matter at hand. In line with requirements of the UK Companies Act 2006, we provide a high-level summary of
how our Directors engaged with our stakeholders and had regard to thcn interests when setting OVO’s str ategy
and taking dccisions concemmg the busmess in 2020.

. Stakeholders
In an increasingly complex changmg and competitive market environment, our Board recognises that the )

business will only grow, prosper and successfully deliver on the'ambitions set out in Plan Zero if it understands,
respects and responds to the views and needs of ourkey stakeholders.

Our people

Without talented and conumitted employees; we could never-deliver on our ambitions. We aspire to create the
UK’s best place to work in order for our people to better serve our customers and partner with them on their
journey ta zero carbon living. Our quarterly employee survey gives employees at all levels the chance to share
views with line managers, colleagues and leadership. Our Board also engages regularly with our people through
a number of employee forums, company-wide town halls and smaller vitlage halls. Our Chief People Officer
attends OVO Group Board meetings 1egulaxly in order to communicate and make 1econm1endanons following
employee feedback

_QOur customers

OVO was founded with the ambition to make energy cheaper, greener and simpler and with the cominitment to
make every decision as if the customer was in the room. Our communications to customers are designed to
mobilise a community around our Plan Zero objective to drive progress to zero carbon living and to support all

‘of our customers in reducing their individual carbon footprint by 50% by 2030. Our Board receives direct

updates. from -each of OVO’s customer facing businesses and regularly discusses customer pexfmmance Net
Promoter Scores and feedback.

Our planet

* The climate crisis is the gleatest challenge we face and awareness of the’ cnvuonmental impact of human

activity on the planet is growing. Key concerns include air pollution, climate change and the destruction of
nature and biodiversity. We're seeing growing movements for change around the world, as well as a real desire
for businesses to limit their impact on the planet and take bold action on climate. Since the launch of Plan Zero,

we have committed to reporting quarterly to the OVO Group Board - with a summary of each Plan Zero
Steering Conunittee meeting. .

Governments and ;egulato; s

Our Board members engage regularly wlth key stakeholders w1thm the UK Govemmcnt devolved
administrations, respective Parliaments and Ofgem. They also share platforms at conferences and roundtables,
discussing and obtaining feedback on regulatory, policy and political priorities. We also have a dedicated Policy
and Public Affairs team who regularly update Board members on policy developments and coordinate a regular
-engagement ploglamme to discuss_ issues such as Plan Zeno market desxgn consumer protection and the
decarbonisation of heat.
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OVO (S) Electricity Limited

Strategic Report for the Period from 1 Apr'il 2020 to 31 December 2020 (continued)

5 S§172 Statement (continued)

Qur: communities

The OVO Charitable Foundation (*OVO Foundation™) was c1eated in 2014 with the mission of ensuring all
children and young ‘people have equitable access to a sustainable future. OVO Foundation invests in projects
that address a real and genume need, can demonstrate measurable and meaningful impact, and provide a high
return on investment. It is also’ comnmted to funding projects that have potential to bring about long-term
systemic change and can be scaled wherever possnble

Our ‘suppliers .
Bluldmg trusted partnerships with our suppliers is lmportant in enabling us to plov1de the best products at the

best prices for our customers. Suppliers are engaged with Plan Zero-by adhering to our Supplier Code of -

Conduct and we have plans to further engage suppliers by 'mcluding sustainability assessments as part of the
-procurement process and ensuring sustainability criteria forms a rmmmum part of weighted assessment scoring
when new suppllers are being selected.

6 Streamlined Energy and Car bon Reporting Framework Regulations

-,

Disclosures in relation to the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting Framework Regulations are included in
the group financial statements of OVO Finance Ltd, which is the-smallest group of undertakings for which
_ group financial statement arc drawn up and of which the Company is a member.

Conclusion and priorities ' '
OVO (S) Electricity Limited delivered a solid performance in the 9 months to 31 December 2020. In 2021, the

Company will continue its integration within the OVO Group ‘which will see customers mlgrated to OVO
Energy Ltd over time. .

In its contmumg actnv:ty of supply of electncxty to the Great Britain domestic market, the Company remains
focused on: .

+ .reducing its operating‘ costs;
« stabilising customer numbers; and

* delivering the benefits of smart metering for both customers and the business.

Approved by the Board on 27 September 2021 and signed (im its béhalf by:

William Castell
Dlrector
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OVO (S)-Electricity Limited

Directors' Report for the Period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020

The Directors present their 1ep01t and the audited ﬁnancnal staternents fOl the period from ! Apnl 2020 to 31
December 2020. : . .

Reporting 1equnements on the Company's business review, its principal risks and uncertainties and its key
performance indicators can.be found in the Strategic Report on pages 2 to 8.

1 Principal actwmes ‘
The Company's principal actmty is the supply of e]ectn icity to domestic customers in Great Butam
2 “Results and dividends

T he profit for the financial period from | Apnl 2020 to 31 December 2020 amounted to £8.0m.(Year ended 31 .
March 2020: loss of £310.5m). .

The balance sheet at 31 December 2020 is set out on page 18 and mdlcatcs net liabilities of £432.4m (At 31.
March 2020: £434.0m). .

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (Year cndéd 31 March 2020: £nil).

3 Directors

The Directors of the Company who were in office dmmo the period and up to the date of 51gmng the fi nanc1al
statements were: .

Stephen Fitzpatrick (resigned 18 January 2021)

Anthony Keeling (resigned 15 Janualy 2021)

Adrian Letts

Vincent Casey

David Walter (appointed 24 November 2020)

The following director was appointed after the period end:
William Castell (appointed 18 January 2021)

In accordance w1th the Amcles of Assoc1atxon of the Company the Directors are not 1equued to 1ctne by
. rotation, .

4 Pohtlcal and chal itable donatlons

The Company did not make any political or.charitable donations duung the period from | Aprll 2020. to 31
December 2020 (Year ended 31 March 2020: £nil).

5 Financial instruments

Financial risk management objectives and policies have been established making use of financial instruments
for the purpose of managing the.exposure of the Company to commodity price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk.
Financial risk management objectives and policies are established and maintained at the OVO Group level. This
.is'discussed in further details in the Snateglc Report on page 2.
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OVO (S) Electricity Limited

Directors’ Repbrt for the Period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020 (continued)

6 Employee policies

Employee engagement

We aspire to be the leading place to work for people who will change the wor ld In punsult of this goal we
regularly engage with our people, and have regard for their interests in our decision making, Employee
engagement is further discussed in the Strategic Report under the heading ‘Stal<eholde1s

Other stakeholder engagement
We liave regard for our business relationships with suppliers, customers and other stakeholders, and take formal -
consideration of any stakeholders which are relevant to any major decisions taken by the Board throughout the
period. Other stakeholder engagemcnt is further discussed in the Strategic Report under the heading
‘Stakeholders'.

Employment of disabled persons

‘One of the Company’s core values is treating people fauly, giving equal oppoxtumtncs to all employees and
applicants. The Company ensures all employees get the same chances for training, development and career
progression depending on their performance, including any disabled employees. If ah employee becomes
- disabled whilst in employment, the Company will make every effort to give the employee suitable
iesponsibilities"with reasonable adjustments in their current role, in line with the Equality Act 2010. Where this
is not possible, the Company will t1y to find the employee another role within ‘OVO and provide additional
training (as necessary).

7 Directors' liabilities

As permitted by the Articles of Association, the Dnectoxs have the benefit of an indemnity which is a quallfymg
‘third party indemnity proyision as defined by Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006. The indemnity was in
force throughout the last financial period and is currently in fonce

8 Disclosure of information to auditors

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors' Report confirm.that, so far as they are
each aware, there is no rclevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are unaware; and each
Director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company s. auditors are aware of that information.
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OVO (S) Electricity Limited

Directors' Report for the Period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020 (continued)

9. Going concern

The Company made a ploﬁt for the peuod ending 31" December 2020 and has net llabllmes The financial’
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Directors believe that preparing the financial stafements- on-the going concern-basis is appropriate due to the

continued financial support of the parent company OVO Group Ltd. The Directors have received confirmation |
that OVO Group Ltd intend to support the Company fox at least one year aftel these financial statements were

signed. . e

The wholesale energy market is currently expenencmg extlemely high and volatile prices. The Group manages |

commodity price risk by securing gas and electricity under forward contracts. Cash flow dnd lnqmdlty risks are”
managed through a combination of short and long range forecasting tools.

In the event of a severe downsnde scenario, the Group had a range of mitigating factors under their direct control
fo protect the Group’s earnings and liquidity. The Group also has a number of arrangements with its creditors
which allow for extended payment terms through the seasonal cycle in order to manage working capital
commitments, -

-

" The Directors have reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate liquidity and resources to continue

operating for a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statemerts. -

N

.10 Future developments

The Directors believe that the Company remains - well posmoned in the malket place. Further mfonmatlon is
mcluded in the Strategic Report. .

11 Statement of Directors' RCSpOllSlblllthS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities f01 preparing the Strategiic Repoxt Duectoxs Report and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company. law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with” United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), mcludm° FRS 101 'Rcduced Disclosure
Framework' (FRS 101").

Under company law the Directors must ‘not” applove the financial statements unless they are satisfi ed that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the-Company for that
period. In prepar mg these financial statcments the Directors are required to:

‘« select suitable accounting pOllClES- and apply them consistently; ' .

« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

«  state whether FRS 101 has been followed subject to any mateual departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements;, and

+ prepare the financial statements on the gomg concern ba51s unless it is mappropuate to presume that the
Company will continue in busmess o . i
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OVO (S) Electl 1c1ty lelted

Dlrectm s' Report for the Perlod from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020 (contmued)

11 Statement of Directors' Responsibilities (continued)

The Directors are responsible for keéping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show. and explain
the-Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the balance sheet of the Company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies. Act 2006. They are
responsible for such internal control as they determine necessary to enable the prepar: ation of financial
- statements -that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to ‘them to safeguard the asséts of the Company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. °

‘Approved by the Board on 27 Septemﬁer 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

William Castell . ‘ . :
_ Director : :
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Independent auditors’ repert tothe.
members of OVO (S) Electricity Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion, OVO (S) Electricity Limited’s ﬂnancial'statements:

. glve a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of its proft for the penod
from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020;
e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountrng Practlce (United -
’ Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework", and applicable Iaw) and
e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the “Annual Report”),
which comprise: the balance sheet as at 31 December 2020; the profit and loss account, the statement of comprehensive
income and the statement of changes in equity for the period then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which
include a description ¢ of the significant accounting policies. :

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our
responsibllities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

lndependence

We rerained independent of the company in .accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of.
at least twelve months from when the fi nancial statements  are authorised for issue.

In audltlng the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the gomg concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropnate

. However, because not all future events, or conditions can be predlcted this concIusron is not a guarantee astothe company 'S
- ab|I|ty to contmue as a going concern. :

Our responsrblhtles and the responsrbllltles of the directors with respect to gomg concern are descrlbed in the relevant
sections of this report.

Reporting on other inforrnatibn

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors! report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does
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not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audlt opmlon or, except to the extent otherwise
explicifly stated i in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

n connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtdined in
the audit, or’ otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material mconsustency or material
misstatement, we are requwed to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that -
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based
_on these responsibilities. : ’

' With respect to the Strategic report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disélosureS'required by thé_ UK 4
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

-Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 reqmres us also to report certam opinions
and matters as described below. :

Strategic report and Directors’ Reporvt‘

In-our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic report and
Directors' Report for the period ended 31 December 2020 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared
in accordance with appllcable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we did
not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Directors' Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements ‘and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of ’
the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from maternal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 4

In preparing the financial statements, the dlrectors are responsible for assessmg the company's ability to contlnue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material -
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect
‘a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be ‘expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements. :

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with
our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent
to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities; including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the company and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws
and regulations related to Ofgem licence conditions, the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme and UK tax legislation, and we -
considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also considered
those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006. We
evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the
risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to the posting of inappropriate journal entries
to manipulate financial performance, and management bias in accountlng estimates and judgements. Audit procedures
.~ performed by the engagement team included: " ’
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« Discussions with management, in house legal counsel and the members of the Combined Risk and Audit Committee,
including consideration of known or suspected instances of non- compliance with laws and regulations and fraud

e Review of Ofgem s website for details of any enforcement action or open investigations;

o - Assessing the risk that amounts claimed under the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme were inapprbpriate;

e Testing whether tax provisions reflect relevant tax legislation, including consideration of any uncertain tax positions;

¢ Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in their significant accounting estimates;

.« ldentifying and testing journal entries that met our predefined risk criteria, in particular journal entries posted with unusual
account combinations; and ' ’

. Incorporatmg an element of unpredictability to our testlng

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of
non-compllance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due-to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
" resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional mlsrepresentations
or through collusion.

A further description of our resporisibilities for the audit. of the financial statéments is located on the FRC's website at:
vaw.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilitiés;‘This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

* This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company's memper's as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or
assume reéponsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may

- come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing. ’ '

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report fo you if, in our op}nion:

"« . we have not obtained all the information and explanations we reqwre for our audit; or
* adequate accountlng records have not been kept by the company, or retums adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or
e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
. e the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

KE AnAn

Katharing Finn (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
" Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors .
Bristol '
27 September 2021
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" OVO (8) Electricity- Limited
" Profit and Loss Account for the Period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020

Underlying Exceptional Total

Period Period Period
I . " froml 7 froml . froml : o
' April 2020 . April 2020  April 2020 Underlying Exceptional Total
to 31 . to 31 to 31 Year ended Year ended Year ended
December December  December 31 March 31 March 31 March
2020 . 2020* 2020 2020 2020* 2020
' Note - £m £m "£m “fm. . £m £m
Revenue . 4 15650 - - 1,565.0  2,252.4 .- 2,252.4
Cost cjfsale's - : (1,350.3) - 1.2 A (1,349.1) (1,979.2) . - (1,979.2)
. Gross proﬁtz_ : 214.7 1.2 ©2159 2732 - 2732
Administrative . o - , o ' ' o
expenses : (125.0) = (61.9) (186.9) (249.1) (400.0) . (649.1)
Impairmentof -~ . ' .
financial asset ) 414 C (3 ) (41.6) - (41.6)
Fair value gains on ; ‘ ' c
derivatives 24 ~227 - 22.7 355 - 355
Other operéting ' i 4 ' ' . -
" income : 5 3.7 - ' 3.7 - - -
Operating . - ) : . :
profit/(loss) - 6 74.7 (60.7) 14.0 - 180 (400.0) - (382.0) :
" Interest receivable and . : :
similar income 8 . 0.3 - 0.3 - - -
Interest payable and . ‘ A .
. similar expenses 9 4.4 - (4.4) (1.5) .- (1.5)
Profit/(loss) before ’
taxation 70.6 (60.7) 9.9 16.5 (400.0) (383.5)
Income tax o . . U ‘ . . :
(charge)/credit ' 13 (13.4) 11.5 (1.9) (3.0) 76.0 730
.Profitl(loss) for the . o i ‘ ' -
financial period 57.2 (49.2) 8.0 13.5 (324.0)- (310.5) !

The above results were derived from continuing operations.-

* Refer to Note 7 for details of exceptional items.

}

The notes on pages 20 to 57 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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OVO (S) Electricity Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December

2020
Period from )
1 April 2020 to . Year ended
31 Décember 31 March
. 2020 2020
. * Neote £m £m
Profit/(loss) for the financial period . , . 8.0 (310.5)
© Ttems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or ' A
loss :
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations ’ .25 ' (1.9) . ) -
Defeired tax on defined benefit pension obligations i4 : 1.5 , -
Total other combrehensive expense - ' ; ; . SR (6:4) o -
Total comprehensive income/(expensé) for the period : 1.6 _(310.5)

The notes on }oagés 20 to 57 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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. OVO (S) Electricity Limited

(Registration number: 04094263)
Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2020

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Right-of-use assets

Current assets |
Stocks

Debtors:
amounts falling due within one year
~ amounts falling due after oné year
Cash at bank and in hand

Total current assets

Creditors: Amounts falling due w'ithin one year

Net current liabilitics

Total assets less current liabilities

o Cl'edjtors: Amounts falling due after more than one year
. Provisions for liabiliﬁes

Net liabilities

Capital and veserves
Called up share capital
Profit and loss account

Total shareholders' deficit

The financial statements on pages 16 to 57 were approved by the Board on 27 September 2021 and signed on its

behalf by:

William Castell
‘Director

The notes on pages 20 to 57 form an integral part of these financial statements. -
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Note

15
16

17

18

19

"20°

22

23

31 December -

31 March
- 2020 " "2020
£fm £m
63.4 645
15.5 25.1 -
78.9 89.6
8.2 02
'702.4 7553
103.8 115.5
- 29
8144 8739 .
(1,236.4) (1,314.5)
(422.0) (4406)
(343.1) . (351.0)
(206) QL
(68.7) (61.9)
(432.4) (434.0)
(432.4) (434.0)
(432.4) (434.0)




OVO (S) Electricity Limited _ '

-

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020

At April 2019

- Loss for the period
Transfer of pension asset from parent company (net of
tax) T . - '
New share capital subscribed
Capital reduction
Credit in respect of employee share awards .

At 31 March 2020

At 1 April 2020
Profit for the period
- Other comprehensive expense

At 31 December 2020

Accumulated '
‘Share capital losses Total
£m £m £m
- (175.4) (175.4)
- (310.5) (310.5)
- 18.7 18.7
314 - 314
(314) 314 -
- 1.8 1.8
- (434.0) (434:0)
- - Accumulated :
Share capital losses Total
£m £m £m
- (434.0) (434.0)
- 8.0 8.0
- (6.4). (6.4)
- (432.4) (432.4)

The notes on'pages 20 to 57 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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OVO (S) Electricity Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Period from 1 April 202_0 to 31 December 2020

1 General information

.OVO (S) Electricity Limited ‘("the Company") is a private company limited by shares and incorporated,
domiciled and registered in England and Wales. The 1eglste1ed number is 04094263 and the registered office is
L Rivergate, Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6ED

The following accountmg policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered )
material in relation to the Company's financial statements.

2 'Accountingpolicies A

" Summary of significant accountmg policies and key accounting estimates

_ The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which.are considered -
material in relation to the Company's financial statements.

Basis of pr epal ation .

These financial 'statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standald 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework ("FRS101") and the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to companies using FRS 101.
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for derivative
financial instruments and defined benefit pension plan - plan assets that have been measured at fair value.

In preparing these financial statements, the Compa'ny has applied the recognition, measurement and disclosure
requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (‘Adopted IFRS'"), but has
made amendments, where necessary, in arder to comply with the Companies Act 2006 and has set out below
where advantage of the FRS 101 disclosure exemptions has bcen taken.

OVO Finance Ltd is the smallest gioup of uhdeﬂakmgs for which group financial statements aré drawn up and
of which the Company is a member. The consolidated financial statements of OVO Finance Ltd which include
the Company are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and are available to
the public and may be obtained from | Rivergate, Temple Quay, Bristol, England, BS1 6ED.

In these financial statements, the Company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 101 in respect of
the following disclosures:

« A cash flow statement and related notes;

+ Comparative period reconciliations for tangible and intangible fixed assets;
~ * The effect of new, but not yet cffective, IFRSs; ‘

+ Disclosures in respect of the compensation of key management pexsonnel

* Disclosures in respect of capital management; and -

* Related party disclosures.
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OVO (S) Electricity Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020
(continued) .

2 Accounting policies-(continued)

As the consolidated financial statements of OVO Finance “Ltd include the equivalent disclosure, the Company
has also taken advantage of the exemptions, under FRS 101, available in respect of the following disclosures:

+ Certain disclosures required by IFRS 13 Fair value measurement and the dlSClOSuleS required by IFRS 7
Financial instruments disclosures; and

. The requirements of the second sentence of pa(aglaph 110 and paragraphs 113(a), | l4 115, 118, 119(a) to (c),
120 to 127 and 129 of [FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods
presented in the financial statements.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are discussed in Note 3.

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of- the primary economic.
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in
‘Pounds Sterling’ (£), which is the Company’s functional and the Company’s ptesentatlon currency.

The ﬁnancial statements are rounded to the nearest 0.1 million.(£m) except where otherwise stafed.

~ Going concern
The Company made a profit for the peuod ending 31 December 2020 and has net liabilities. The financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Directors believe that preparing the financial statements on the going concern basis is appropriate due to the
continued financial .support of the parent company OVO Group Ltd. The Directors have received confirmation
that OVO Group Ltd intend to support the Company for at least one year after these financial statements were
signed.

The wholesale energy market is currently experiencing extremely high and voletile prices. The Group manages
commodity price risk by securing gas and electricity under forward contracts. Cash flow and liquidity risks are -
managed through a combination of short and long range forecasting tools. * .

In the event of a severe downside scenario, the Gnoup had a range of mltlgatmg factors under their direct control
to protect the Group’s earnings and liquidity. The Group also has a number of arrangements with its creditors’
which allow for extended payment terms through the seasonal cycle in order to manage working capltal
commitments.-

The Directors have reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate liquidity and resources to continue
operating for a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements :
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OVO (S) Electricity lelted

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Period from 1 Aprll 2020 to 31 December 2020
' (continued)

2 Accounting policiés (continued) - ' g '

Changes in accounting.policy

New and amended standards adopted by the Company :

The Company has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time fm their annual reporting
peuod comumencing | Apnl 2020: .

* Definition of Matetial - amendments to TAS 1 and IAS 8

+ Definition of a Business - amendments to IFRS 3 .

‘+ Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - amendments to IFRS 9, TIAS 39 and IFRS 7
+ Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

The amendments listed dbOVE d1d not have any impact on the amounts recognised i m prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

Change in reporting period’ :

~ The repor tlng period for the Company was shoxtened from 1 Apul to 31 March previously to 1 Apul to 31
December .in the current period to align with thé reporting period for OVO group of companies. The financial
statements have been prepared for the period from | Apu’l 2020 to 31 December 2020. Subsequent periods will
end on the .same day and month in future years. As a result, the amounts p:esented in the current period's
financial statements are not entirely comparable.

~

Classnﬁcatlon of items in the financial statements

The classification is not consistent with prior year ‘as the current period classification has been amended to align
. with OVO group of companies. The Company did not reclassify the prior year amounts due to impracticality

involved.

Revenue recognition

Recognition

The Company earns revenue on the supply of electricity, which comprises sales to domestic end-user customers
based on actual electric consumption including an estimate of the value of electricity supplied to customers
between the date of the last meter reading and the period end. Revenue is recognised "over time" consistent with
the delivery of electricity to the customer, as we consider the receipt and consumption of the beneﬁts of the
electricity to be simultaneous. , :

Revenue is measured on the applicable customer tariff rate and after deduction of dxscounts fm ditect debits,
paperless bllllng, or government schemes such as the "Warm Home Dnscount" :

Installation and rental of smart meters .

Installation and rental of smart meter revenue is earned from the pnovnslon of services relating to the supply,
. maintenance and installation of smart meters-in the UK. This revenue is recognised in the accounting period
when the services are rendered at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for fulfilling its performance obligations to customers.

The principles in [FRS are applied to revenue recognition criteria using the following 5 step model:

1. 1dentify the contracts with the customer
2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract
3. Determine the transaction pr ice
" 4. Allocate the transaction price to the per formance obligations i in the contnact
5. Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies its performance obligations
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- OVO (S) Electuclty Limited

‘Notes to the I‘manclal Statements fon -the Period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020
(continued)

2 Accountmg pohcxes (continued) S -

Accr ued income and receivables
Accrued income is the right to conmdenatnon in exchange for goods or services provided to the customer. If the
Company provides goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is
.due, accrued .income is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. A receivable represents the
Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is 1equ1red
before payment of the consideration is due).

Deferred reveniie

Deferred revenue is the obhgatlon to provide goods or-services to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer: If a customer pays
consideration before the Company provides goods or services fo the customer, deferred revenue is recognised
when. the payment is made or the payment is' due (whichever is earlier). Deferred income is recognised as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

. Net basis of measurement of contract balances
Accrued income and deferred revenue posntlons are dctcnmned for each contlact on a net basis. This is because
the rights and obligations within each contract ave considered inter-dependent. Where two contracts are with the
same or related customers or entities, an assessment is made of whether accrued-income and defeued revenue
are mtex -dependent and if so, accrued income and deferred revenue are reported net. .

Capitalisation of cosls t0 obtain or Sulfil a contract -

The incremental costs of obtaining a conltract are recognised as an asset if certain criteria are met. The Company
has elected to apply the optional practical expedient for costs to obtain a contract which allows the Company to
immediately expense customer -acquisition or fulfilment costs because the amortisation peuod of the asset that
the Company otherwise would have used is one year or less.

Exceptional items
Exceptional items are those charges or credits that are considered unusual by nature and/or scale and of such
significance that separate disclosure is required for the financial statements to be properly understood. The
trigger points for exceptional items wiil tend to be non-recurring. , o
Government grants '

Grants from the government are recognised in the profit and loss account over the per lod in which the related
-costs are recognised and once the Company complies with all the attached conditions.

Finance incomie and costs policy . : .

JInterest receivable and interest payable is recognised in the profit and loss account as it accrues, using the
effective interest method. Dividend income is recognised in the profit and loss account on the date the entity’s
right to receive payments is established. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

\
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OVO (S) Electricity Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for. the Period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020
(contmued)

.

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current tax. Tax is recognised in the profit and loss account, except '

that a change attributable to an item of income or expense recognised as other compnehensnve income is also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income. .

The cuirent income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the |epomng date in the countries where the Company operates and genelates taxable
income.

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements and on unused tax losses or tax credits in the

Company. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the reporting date.

* The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and a valuation allowance is set
up against deferred tax assets so that the net carrying amount equals the highest amount that is more likely than
not to be recovered based on current or future taxable profit.

Intangible assets

Development assets and software \
Software assets include the costs of developing and installing products for use within the business. Cost includes
capitalised interest where applicable. Software is amortised once the development of the software is complete
and has been implemented. The useful life of the asset is assessed on the basis of the nature of the asset and an
expected useful life is applied accordingly. The amortisation period is as follows:

Asset class ' ' , Years
Software and IT development costs - L 1 -3 years

Impan ment of non-ﬂnancml assets

Intangible assets that have a indefinite useful life or mtanglble assets not.ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and- are tested-annually for lmpaument Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the canymg amount. may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets, are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
largely independent cash flows (cash-generating units). Prior impairments of non-financial assets are reviewed
for possible reversal at each reporting date.
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OVO (S) Electric‘ity Limited

Notes to the Financlal Statements for the Period fn om 1 Apn il 2020 to 31 Decemben 2020
: (continued) :

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Financ‘ial instruments

Initial recognition .

Financial assets and financial liabilities compusc all assets and liabilities reflected in the balance sheet, although
excluding tangible assets, intangible assets, defeued tax assets, prepayments,” deferred. tax liabilities and
employce benefits plan.

The Company recognises fi nancial assets and financial liabilities in the- balance sheet when, and only ‘when, the
Company becomes party to the contlactual provisions of the f’manclal mstmment
Financial assets are initially recognised at fair Value Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value,
representing the proceeds received net of premiums, discounts and transaction costs that are dnectly atmbutable
to the financial liability. :

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets and financial liabilities classified as fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPLY) are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date on which the Company commits to
purchase or sell the financial assets or financial liabilities. All regular way purchases and sales of other financial
assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the settlement date, i.e. the date on which the asset or liability is
received from or delivered to the counterparty. Regular wdy purchases-or.sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in
the market place. - '

or fair value.
Classification and measurement '
subsequent measurement methodology 24
Financial assets are classified into one of the followmg three categm ies:-
- financial assets at amortised cost;
- financial assets at fair value through other compxehenswe income (FVTOCI); or
- financial assets at fair value through thie profit or loss (FVTPL).
Financial liabilities are classified into one of the following two categories:'— :
- financial liabilities at amortised cost; or

~ financial liabilities at fan value through the profit or loss (FVTPL)

The classification and the basis fox measurement are subject to the Company s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asscts as detailed below:-

At 31 December 2020, the Company had no assets measured at FVTOCL
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OVO (8) Electricity Limited

Notes to the Fmanclal Statements for the Period from 1 April 2020 to 31 Decembex 2020.
(contmued)

2 Accounting policics (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost . |
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following condltlons and is not demgnated ‘
as at FVTPL:-

+ the assets are held wntlnn a busmess model whose objective is to hold assets in omdel to collect contractual cash
flows; and

- the contractual terms of the ﬂnancnal assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
‘of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

If either of the above two criteria is not met, the financial assets are classified and measulcd at fair-value tlnough
the profit or loss (FVTPL). :
If a financial asset meets the amortised cost criteria, the Company may choose to designate the financial asset at

FVTPL. Such an election is irrevocable and apphcable only if the FVTPL classification significantly reduces a

measurement or recognition inconsistency. :

Financial assets at fair value throu'.gh the profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets not otherwise classified above are classified and measured as FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amoitised cost
All financial liabilities, other than those classified as financial liabilities at FVTPL, are measured at amomsed
cost using the effective interest rate method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through the profit or loss
Financial liabilities not measured at amortised cost are classified and measured at FVTPL. This classification
includes derivative liabilities.

Derivative financial instr uments .

Within its regular course of business, the Company routinely enters into sale and purchase derivative contracts

for electricity. Where the contract was entered into and continues to be held for the purpose of receipt or

delivery- in accordance with the Company's expected sale, purchase or usage requirements, the contracts are.
designated as “‘own use” contracts and are measured at cost. These contracts are not within'the scope of IFRS 9.

Derivative conunadity contracts which are not designated as own use contracts -are accounted for as trading
- derivatives and are recognised in the balance sheet at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fau value
i 1ecogmsed lmmedlately in the profit and Ioss account.

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand comprise cash on hand and call deposits, and other short-term highly liquid
investments that are 1eadlly convertible to a known .amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.
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. OVO (S) Electricity Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Period from 1 April 2020 to 31 Decembet 2020
» (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Trade debtors

Trade debtors are amounts due from &ustomers for the sale of elcctucnty or other services performed in the
_ordinary course of business.

Trade debtors are recognised initially at the transaction price. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for the impairment: of trade
debtors is established when there is objective evidence that the Company w1ll not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the ori gmal terms of the debtors.

The Company. apphes the IFRS 9 simplified dpplodch to measuring expected credit losses whlch uses a lifetime
expected credit loss allowance for all trade debtors and accrued income. Further detail on this model and
application within these financial statements can be found within Note 3.

Stock
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the ﬁlst-m first-out
(FIFO) method. .
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprisés direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour
costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
_ condition. At each reporting date inventories are assessed for impairment. 1f inveritory is impaired, the carrying
amount is reduced to its selling. price less costs to complete and sell; the impairment loss is recognised
lmmedlately in the profit and loss account.

Trade creditors .

Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquned in the ordinary course of
‘business from suppliers. Trade creditors are classified as current liabilities if payment is duc within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cyclc of the busmcss if longer). If not, they are presented as non-cunent
liabilities. . .

Trade creditors are recognised initially at the transaction pnce and subsequently measured at amomsed cost
using the effective interest method. -

Provisions ) ' ]

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle that obligation and’a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. .
Provisions are measuled at the Directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the
reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect is material. ’
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oVvVO (S) Electri'city Limited

Notes to the Fmanclal Statements for the Period from 1 April 2020 to 31 Decembel 2020
(contmued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

-Leases
Definition

A lease is a contract, or a part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset or a physically distinct part of
an asset ("the underlying asset") for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Further, the contract must
convey the right to the Company to control the asset or a physically distinct portion thereof. A contract is
deemed (o convey the right to control the underlying asset if, throughout the peuod of use, the Company has the
right to:

« Obtain substantially all the economic benefits from the use of the underlying asset, and; ,
+ Direct the use of the underlying asset (e.g., direct how and for what purpose the asset is used).

Initial recognition and measurenient

The Company initially recognises a lease liability for the obligation to make lease payments and a nghl—of-use
asset for the right to usc the underlying asset for the lease term.

Thc lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments ‘include fixed payments, purchase options at exercise price (where payment is reasonably
~ certain), expected amount of residual value guarantees, termination option penalties (wheré payment is
considered reasonably certain) and variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate.

The. rigﬁt—of-use asset is initially measured.at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted for lease prepayments;
lease incentives received, the Company’s initial direct costs (e.g., commissions) and an estimate of restoration,,
- removal and dismantling costs.

Subsequent measurement

After the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability by:

(a) Increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; -

(b) Reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and .

(c) Re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment of lease modifications or to reflect 1e\nsed n
substance fixed lease payments or on the occurrence of other speclﬁc events.

Interest on the lease liability in each period during the Lease term is the amount that produces a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability. Interest charges are included in interest payable
and similar expenses in the profit and loss account, unless the costs are included in the carrying amount of
. another asset applying other applicable standards. Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of
“the lease liability, are mcluded in operating expenses in the penod in wlnch the event or condition that mggels
them ar lSCS

The related right-of-use asset is accoumed for using the Cost model in IAS'16 and depreciated and chalged in
accordance with the depreciation requirements ‘'of TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment. Adjustments are made
to the carrying value of the right-of-use asset where the lease liability is re-measured in accordance with the
above. Right-of-use assets are tested for' impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of assets.
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2 Accounting pblicies (continued)

Lease modifications

[fa lease is modified, the modified contract is evaluated to determine whether it is or contains a lease. If a lease
continues to-exist, the lease modification will \esull in elthel a sepalate lease or a change in the accounting for
the exxstmg lease.

The modification is accounted for as a separate lease if both:

(a) The modiﬁcafion iocreases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
" and

(b) The consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensur ate w1t11 the stand-alone price for the

increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand- alone price to reflect the cucumstances of the

particular contract. - .

If both of these conditions are met, the lease modification results in two separate leases, the unmodified original.
lease and a separate lease. The Company then accounts for these in line with the accounting policy for new
leases. ' '

If either of the conditions ‘are not met, the modified lease is not accounted for as a separate lease and the
consideration is allocated to the contract and the lease liability is re-measured using the lease term of the
- modified lease and the discount rate as determined at the effective date of the modification.

For a modification' that fully or partially decreases the scope of the lease (e.g., reduces the square footage of
leased space), IFRS 16 requires a lessee to decrease the carrying amount of the -right-of-use asset to reflect
partial or full termination of the lease. Any difference between those adjustments is recognised in the profit and
loss account at the effective date of the modification. .

L

.

For all othel lease modifications which. are not accounted for as a separate l‘case IFRS 16 requires the lessee to
recognise the amount of the re-measurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the corresponding
right-of-use asset without affectmg the profit and loss account.

" Short term and low value leases

The Company has made ari accounting policy election, by class of undellymg asset, not to recognise lease assets
and lease liabilities f01 leases w1lh a lease term of 12 months or less (i.e. sholt term leases).

The Company has made an accounting policy election on a lease-by-lease basis, not to 1ecogmsc lease assets on
leases f01 which the undellymg asset is of low value.

Lease payments on short term and low value' leases are accounted for on a straight line bases over the term' of
the lease or other systematic basis if considered more appropriate. Short term and low value lease payments are
included in operating expenses in the profit and loss account,

Shal e capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Equity instruments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other
resources received or receivable, net of the direct costs of i issuing the equity instr uments. If payment is defelred
.and the time value of money is material, the initial measu:cmem is on a present value basis.
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2 Accounting poiicies (continued)

‘Defined contribution pcnsmn obligation .

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which ﬁxed contributions are paid into a sepalate entity and
- has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the .bene'ﬁts relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans contributions are paid publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory or contractual basis. The contributions are recognised as employeé benefit expense when they .
are due. If contribution payments exceed the contribution due for scrvice, the excess is recognised as an asset.

Defined beneﬁt pension obllgatlon )
Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement,
usually dcpcndent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of
the defined benefit obligation .at the reporting date minus the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit
obligation is measured using .the projected unit credit method. The present value of ‘the defined .benefit
obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future payments by reference to market yields at the
reporting date on high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in whicli the benefits will be
paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the rclated pension liability. ‘

Actuarial gains and losses are charged or cnedltcd to other comprehensive income in the period in which they
arise. - :

Past-service costs are recognised immediately. in the profit and loss account. ‘

Share based payments

The Company operates an eqmty—settled share-based compensation plan,. unde1 which the entity receives
services from employees.as consideration for equity instruments (options) of the entity. The fair value of the
employee services received is measured by reference to the- estimated fair value at the grant date of equity
instruments granted and is recognised as an expense over the vesting period. The estimated fair value of the
option granted is calculated using the Black Scholes option pricing model. The total amount expensed is
recognised over the vesting penod which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to
be satisfied.

The proceeds received net of any duectly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital (nommal
valuc) and share plcmlum when the options are exercised.

Page 30



S OVO () Eiectricity Limited

Notes to the F Fmanaal Statements for the Perlod from 1 April 2020 to 31 Decembel 2020
(continued)

3 _Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

-
Y

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilifies, and the accompanying disclosures.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a materiaf adjustment to
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future peuods affected.

" The key areas involving estimates and Judgementq that has the most s1gmﬁcant effect on the amounts 1ecogmsed
in the financial statements are explained below.

Revenue recognition - energy supplied but not yet measured (estimation uncertainty)

Revenue from energy supplied to customers includes ‘an estimate of the value of electricity ‘supplied to
customers between the date of the latest meter reading and the financial period end.

This estimate comprises both billed revenue (trade debtors) and unbilled revenue (accrued income) and is
calculated with reference to the tariffs and contractual rates applicable to customers against estimated customer
consumption. Estimated customer consumption takes into account various factors including usage patterhs,
weather trends and notiﬁed’ aggregated volumes supplied to the customers from national settlements bodies.

A change in the assumpuons underpinning the calculation would have an impact on the amount of revenue
recognised in any given period. This estimate is subject to an internal validation process which compares
calculated unbilled volumes to a theoretical real-time billing benchmark measure of unbilled volumes with
reference to historical consumption patterns adjusted for seasonality/weather and aggregated metering data used
in industry reconciliation processes. Unbllled revenue 1ecogmsed in the balance sheet at 31 December 2020 was
£322.9m (31 March 2020: £339 5m).

Impairment of tr: ade debtors (estlmatlon uncertainty)

[mpairments against trade debtors are recognised where the loss is expected The Company applies the IFRS 9
simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected credit loss allowance for
all trade debtors and accrued income.The impairment is calculated by splitting the portfolio into segments and
the Directors have based their assessment of the level of impairment on collection rates experienced within each
. segment to date.The estimates and assumptions used to determine the level of provision will continue to be
reviewed periodically and could lead to changes in the impairment provision methodology which would impact
the profit and loss account in future years.

The assumption that future performance of customer debt settlement will be reflective of past performance is the,
most significant” assumption within the expected c¢redit loss provisioning model: To address this risk, the
Company reviews the provision rates for each segment on a regular basis to ensure they are based on the most
up to date assumptions and use forward looking information. Provision for impairment of trade debtors and
accrued income recognised on the Balance sheet at 31 December 2020 was £95.9m (31 Maich 2020: £67.4m)..
Provision has increased as a % of trade debtors and accrued income at 31 Decembel 2020 due to additional
provision recognised asa result of the impact of Covxd 19.
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-

3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Derivative financial instr uments (accountmg judgement)

Within its regular course of business, the Company routinely enters into sale and purchase derivative contracts
for electricity. Where the contract was entered into and continues to be held for the purpose of receipt or
delivery in accordance with the Company's expected sale, purchase or usage requirements, the contracts are
designated as “own use”contracts and are measured at cost.These contracts are not within the scope of IFRS 9.
The percentage of contracts that are deemed to meet own-use criteria is considered to be an area of accounting
judgement that significantly impacts the level of unrealised gains and losses on derivatives that are recognised in

. the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets (accounting judgement and uncertainty)

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of all tax losses and other temporary differences giving rise
to deferred tax assets where the Directors believe it is probable that these assets will be recovered, i.e:, that
future taxable amounts>(e.g. taxable profits) will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.
The carrying amount of the deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that.sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered. The recoverability of deferred tax assets relating to losses is based on forecasts of future taxable
profits which are, by their riature, uncertain.

The Company prepares medium-term forecasts based on Board-approved budgets. These are used to support
- judgements made in the preparation of the Company’s financial statements including the recognition of deferred
tax assets. ' ‘ .

Having assessed the level profits made by the Company since the period end and forecasts of revenue and costs
for the coming years, the Directors believe it is probable that the Company will generate sustainable profits and
therefore a deferred tax asset has been recognised. Defelred tax assets in respect of tax losses are expected to,
reverse over the next 6 to 8 years. .

The Company remains exposed to the risk of changes in law that impact the Companj’s ability to carry forward
and utilise tax attributes recognised as defetved tax assets.

~

4 Revenue

The analysis of the Company's turnover for the period from continuing operations is as follows:

Period from

1 April 2020 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
. £m : £m
Sale of electricity C1,5078  2,196.1
Ihstalla_tion of smart mmeters ) ] 572 56.3
1,565.0 2,252.4

All the revenue reported in the period is sold within the UK.
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5. Other operating income
The analysis of the Company s othel operating income for the peuod is as follows:

) ) Period from

1 April2020to  Year ended 31

31 December "March”

2020 2020

‘ £m £m
Government grants o - : 3.7 . -

Government grants relate to grants in respect of furloughed employees under the Coronavirus Job Retention .

Scheme. During the period, the Company received government grants under the Coronavirus.Job Retention
Scheme, a scheme introduced by the UK government to support organisations during the COVID-19 pandemlc
The scheme offers grants to cover a pxopomon of the salaries of ﬁnloughed staff.

/
The glants were lecogmsed as othe1 opexatmg income to the extent that management consudels the gxants will be
received. .

6 Operating profit/(loss)
Arrived at after charging

Period from :
1 April 2020to . Year ended

31 December 31 March

2020 2020

. . . £m - £m
Depreciation expense - tangible assets ‘ - 2.0
Depreciation expense - right-of-use assets _ : ._ 2.8 L3
}Right-of-use asset impairment* , IR . 8.5 ) -
Amortisation expense - intangible assets ’ . 13.2 36.8
Impairment of financial asset S : S ‘ 414 : 41.6

*Refer to Note 7 for details of right-of-use asset impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Period from 1 April 2020 to 31 Decemben 2020 -

(contmued) ; ‘
7 Exceptional items ‘ R ' o , -
' Period from :
s . o . 1 April 2020 to Year ended
' 31 December - 3 March
' . 2020 2020
£m. £m
Restructuring costs 216 1.3
‘Onerous contract and lease costs 218 - . 609
Integration costs ) 838 S
Right-of-use asset impairment ’ 8.5 L
Impairment onvﬁxed assets ' e 331.8
Exceptional included within operating profit/(loss) 60.7 .400.0
Exceptional included within proﬁt/(loss) l)ef01‘e tax 60.7 : 400.0
Net taxation on exceptional items 11.5 76.0

Restructuring costs

Following OVO acquisition, the ovo Group has initiated an integration programune which has resulted in the
redundancy of a number of employees in the Company. The restr uctuung plan was announced to the employees
in May 2020. The restructuring is expected to be completed by 2021.

Integf ‘ation costs - :
This primarily relates to costs incurred for consultancy on the - mtegratlon of the Company into the OVO Group
" following OVO acquisition.

Right-of-use asset unpamnent
In May 2020, OVO announced the closule of several offices alongside its redundancy proglamme Certain
right-of-use assets in the Company were impaired as a 1esult of office closures.
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7 Exceptional items*'(continued)‘

" Onerous contract costs

As part of the acquisition by OVO the Company entered into a Master Senvnccs Agleement (MSA) with SSE
Telecommunications Limited in connection with the supply of telephony services. At the time of the acquisition,
the agreement was deemed an unfavourable contract as the Company considered the costs of meeting the
" obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from it. It is management's
intention to terminate’ the MSA at the earliest possible period. The costs will be incurred during the lifespan of
the contract. :

Onerous lease costs

The property leases for the closed offices have not terminated and the Company continues to incur business
rates and service charges relating to the plopelty leases. A provision has been recognised for the unavmdable
costs under the leases.

Impairment on ﬁ\ed assels

In the year ended 31 March 2020, an exercise was undertaken to review the fair value of the Company s tangible
and intangible assets following OVO's acquisition. Tt was assessed that the UELs for system assets will
ultimately be retired and replaced with OVO systems and as a result, the Company mcogmsed an impairment
charge of £331.8m. LT

Adjusted EBITDA :
Management reported adjustéd EBITDA in the annual report as management considers it plOVldes additional
useful information on business performance and underlying trends. It is also the primary measure’ management
use to monitor performance internally and is also reported to our lenders as part'of covenants reporting.
Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP measure and is not defined by IFRS. The presentation of APMs is a
judgment and policy choice made by management and therefore, not comparable.

Adjusted EBITDA is-defined as operating profit/(loss), after adjusting for depreciation and ‘amortisation and
" items that are deemed unusual in nature and of significance excluding fair value gains on derivatives.
A reconciliation of the adjusted per fmmance measure to openatmg profit/(loss) is shown below.

Period from ‘ .
1 April 2020 to Year ended

. 31 December 31 March

' ' 2020 2020

: - £m £m

Operating profit/(loss) 14.0 (382.0)
Exceptional items ' : o 60.7 ' 400.0

Depréciation and lmpaument of property, plant and equnpment and

right-of-use assets 2.8 5.7
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 13.2 . 36.8

Adjusted EBITDA - : R - 907 " 60.5°
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»
8 Interest receivable and similar income

' Period from- s _

1 April 2020 to Year ended

31 December 31 March

2020 ’ 2020

© £m- £m

Interest on net defined benefit assets T . 0.3 - C -

.9 Interest payable and similar expehsés
Period from

1 April 2020 to Year ended

31 December . 31'March

2020 v 2020

] £m . | £m

- Interest on bank overdrafts and borrowings . . 0.4 -
Interest paid to group undertakings . - 1.8

' Unwinding of discount on provisions ) . © 24 - 04

Interest expense on leases _ _ 1.6 1.3
Interest capitalised . ' .- (2.0)

4.4 1.5

10 Staff costs

The agéregate payroll costs (including Directors' remuneration) were as follows:

‘Period from

1 April 20290 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
- o £m o £m
‘ Wages and salaries ' : ‘ ‘ ' 90.1 128.1
" Social security costs R . . 73 1.6
Pensioncosts, defined contribution scheme - 5.0 o 15.3
Pension costs, defined benefit scheme ) 8.1 2.5
Share-based payment expenses ' - . 1.7
Redundancy costs . o 21.6 7.3
y 7 ) R 132.1 166.5
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10 Staff costs (continued‘)‘

" The monthly average numbel of pelsons employed by the Company (including Dnectoxs) during the period,
analysed by category was as follows
Employee numbers

~ Period from -
1 April 2020 to Year ended

31 December .31 March

2020 ' 2020

: No. . - No.

Administration and support : . o . L - 4,054 : 4,488

11 Directors' remuneration -
The Directors' remuneration for the period was as follows:

Period from ' ) ’
-1 April 2020 to. Year ended .

31 December - ° 31 March

. 2020 2020

) : o £m . £m
Remuneration . N , 0.4 0.9

In respect of the highest paid director:

Period from :
1 April 2020 to Year ended

31 December 31 March

© 2020 2020

. . ‘ C£m, . £m

Remuneration ' ‘ - 03 v 0.4
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11 Directors' remuneration (continued)

The above value for the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020 was for 2 Directors, who were
remunerated directly by the Company. The remaining Directors were remunerated “via OVO Group Ltd and
OVO Energy Ltd. The Directors' compensation paid by OVO Group Ltd and QVO Energy Ltd is not recharged
to the entity. These Directors are additionally Directors of a number of parent entities and fellow subsidiaries,
and it is not possible to imake a reasonable apportionment of their compensation in respect of each of the parent
_entities and subsidiaries. Accordingly, the total compensation of the Directors is included in the aggregate of
Directors' remuneration disclosed in the financial statements of OVO Energy Ltd and the consohdated fi nancnal
statements of OVO Group Ltd.

Retirement benefits were accruing to 1 of the Directors 1cmunerated dnectly by the Company (Year ended 3]
March 2020: none). The total company contributions to defined contribution pension schemes for the highest
paid Director remunerated directly by the Company is £nil (Year ended 31 March 2020: £nil).

The above va]ue for the year ended 31 March 2020 was for 3 dnectors who were nemunelated via another SSE
group company until 15 January 2020. From 6 January 2020 the Directors are paid by OVO Energy Ltd which .
makes no recharge to the entity. It is not possible to apportion their emoluments between group companies. The
Directors.are additionally directors of a number of parent companies and fellow subsidiaries, and it is not
possible to make a reasonable apportionment of their compensation in respect of each of the companies.

" Accordingly, the total compensation of the Directors are included in the aggregate of key management
personnel compensation disclosed in the consolidated financial statements of OVO Group Ltd.

12 Augiitors' remuneration

The audit fee in relation to the audit of OVO (S) Electricity Limited in the period from | April 2020 to 31 .
December 2020 was £130,000 (Year ended 31 March 2020: £180,000). In the period ended 31 Decembel 2020,
the audit fee was borne by OVO Energy Ltd (Year ended 31 March 2020: the parent company).

/
OVO Finance Ltd, in which the Company is consohdated, are required-to disclose the fees for non-audit services
on a consolidated basis and therefore, the- Company has taken advantage of the exemption not to disclose
amounts paid for non-audit services. ' »

13 Income tax cliargc/(cr,cdit)

" Tax charged/(credited) in the profit and loss account

v Period from .

1 April 2020¢t0 - Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
£m - £m

_ Current taxation ) o ) S
UK corporation tax . ) T (1.6) T (5.2)
UK corporation tax adjustment to prior periods 0l 1.0
' (1.5) L (42)

Page 38




ovo (S) Electr 1c1ty Limited

._Notes to the Fmancxal Statements for the Period from 1 Apul 2020 to 31 Decembel 2020

(continued)
13 Income tax-charge/(credit)(continued)
v ' ‘ Period from B
1 April 2020 to Year ended
, 31 Deceémber 31 March
2020 2020
£m £m
Deferred taxatlon . o
Ansmg from origination and reversal of temponax y dlffexences 35 . (65.5)
Adjustment in respect of prior periods : ©.1) v
Atising from changes in tax rates and laws ' A ' . “ (3.3)
Total deferred taxation. o ‘ . ' 3.4 ’ (68.8)
- Tax charged/(credited) in the prdﬁt and loss account - . 1.9 '(73.0)

The tax on profit/(loss) before tax for the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020 is the same as the
standard rate of corporation tax in the UK (Year ended 31 March 2020 - lower than the standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK) of 19% (Year ended 31 March 2020 - 19%).

The differences are reconciled below:

Period from 1

April 2020 to 31° Year eunded 31

December March
. 2020 22020
. _ _ . _ £m o £m .
Profit/(loss) before tax S - g S99 (383.5)
. (Eg;/ponatlon tax at standard rate of 19% (Year ended 31 March 2020: L9 ‘ , (7'2'9)
0)
Increase from effect of expenses not deductible in determining taxable ) 03
~ profit _ :
Decrease from transter pricing adjustments : - . 0.2)
Increase fréin effect of exercise of employeé share options o ' . - - (0.1)
Increase ﬂom effect of losses carried. back . o . 2.2 .
Increase in cuirent tax from adjustmcnt for prior peuods ' - 1.0
Deferred tax credit relating to changes in tax rates or laws ) - (3.3)
Total tax charge/(credit)y . N 19 (73:0)
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14, Deferred tax
Deferred tax ass‘ets and liabilities
Net deferred
Asset. Liability tax
At 31 December 2020 o Em £m £m
Accelerated tax.depreciation 208 - 20.8
Provisions 0.6 - - 0.6
Derivatives - 2.0) (2.0)
Other items - - . -
Tax losses carry-forwards 73.9 - 73.9 .
Pension benefit obligations - (2.4) (2.4)
: 95.3 (4.4) 90.9
Net deferred
: Asset Liability “tax
At 31 March 2020 £m £m . £m-
Accelerated tax depreciation 19.4 - 19.4
Provisions 0.9 - 0.9
Derivatives 2.3 - 2.3
Other items - - -
Tax losses carry-forwards 74.1 Co- 74.1
Pension benefit obligations - (3.9) (3.9)
196.7 3.9) 92.8
¢
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(contmued)

14 Deferred tax (continued)' -

Deferred tax movement during the current period:

Recognised in

: Recognisedin - other At

At 1 April  profit and loss comprehensive 31 December

2020 account income <2020

_ £m - Am £m £m
Accelerated tax depreciation” . " 194 14 - 208
Provisions .09 03) - 0.6
. Derivatives o ' 23 (4.3) I - (2.0)
Other items ' o - _ - -

Tax losses cairy-forwards - 741 0.2) : - 739

Pension benefit obligations - o (3.9 - 1.5 - (2.4)
Net tax assets/(liabilities) . 928 = . 3.49) 1.5 90.9

) Deferred tax movement during the prior year:

Recognised in .
At 1 April  profit and loss Recognised in At 31 March

2019 account ’ equity 2020

. . £m S £m £m - £m
~ Accelerated tax depreciation . 16.6 2.7 - T 0l - 194
~ Provisions _ 32 2.3) - ' 0.9
Derivatives . , ' 8:2 - (5.9) ' - .23

Other items 0.3 - (0.3) - - :

Tax. losses carry-forwards - . 7401 ‘ - 74.1
Pension benefit obligations ‘ - - 0.5 . (44 (3.9)
Net tax assets/(liabilities) : 28.3 68.8 4.3) . . 9238

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of carried forward losses on the basis that there will be
. future profits available against which to offset them. There are no time limits on the recovery of such losses. N

Refer to.Note 3, critical accountmg judgements, for further dlscussmn on the basis for |ecogmt|on of deferred
tax assets. - . ‘

.

A change to the main UK corporation tax rate announced in the Budget on 11 March 2020 was Substantlvely
enacted on 17 March 2020 by a Budget resolution. The rate. effective from | April 2020 now remains at 19%
rather than the previously enacted reduction to 17%. Deferred tax balances were remeasured to 19% from the

' previous rate of 17% in the year ended 31 March 2020. :

[11 the Spring Budgel 202! the UK Government announced that the UK corporation tax rate will_increase to
25% from 1 April 2023. The net deferred tax asset has been calculated at 19% as this rate has been substantively

- enacted at the balance sheet date. Had the 25% rate been substantively enacted on or before 31 Decembel 2020
it would have had the effect of increasing the net deferred tax asset by £28.7m.
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15 Intangible assets .
Software and
IT
development 4
costs  Total
£m £m -
Cost or valuation . L '
At 1 April 2020 ‘ _ o » 517.4 517.4
Additions . ' ‘ 12.1 12.1
At 31 December 2020 o - R ©529.5 . 529.5
Accumulated amortisation ) . . - :
At 1 April 2020 . - . ' 452.9 452.9
Amortisation charge v ’ . 132 13.2
At 31 December 2020 - A o 466.1  466.1
Carrying amount : .
At 31 December 2020 o , ‘ _634 63.4
. At 31 March 2020 o : ] 64.5 64.5

Amortisation charge of £13.2m (Year ended 31 March 2020: £36.8m) is recognised in administrative expenses.
Included within the carrying amount of the Software and IT dévelopment costs of £63.4m (Year ended 31

March 2020: £64.5m) are intangible assets under construction of £22. 6m (Yeal ended 31 March 2020: £14.4m),
which are not subject to amortisation, .
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Period frolmbl April 2020 to 31 December 2020

(continued)
16 liight—of-useassets
’ Vehicles Property Total
£m £m . £m
Cost or valuation : . ’ - .
At 1 April 2019 _ - 17.4 17.4
Additions B ' 05 145 15.0 °
At31 March2020 © - - o 319 324
At |- April 2020 ‘ ' ' 0.5 31.9 . 324
- Modification . ’ o . (0.2) ' 1.9 - 1.7
At31 December 2020 - ' A . 03 33.8 .34.1
Accumulated depreciation . , ' . ‘ (
At 1 Apil2019 ¢ - S35 '35
Charge for year - I , - 0.1 3.7 . 38
At 3] March 2020 - ‘ L : . 01 - 7.2 7.3
At 1 April 2020 _ 01 7.2 7.3
Charge for the period . o .- © 2.8 2.8
Impairment ' A ‘ s - . 85 ' 8.5
At 31 December 2020 : 0.l 185 186
Carrying amount '
‘At 31 December 2020 ‘ , 0.2 153 15.5 .
At 3] March 2020 o 0.4 247 251

'Page 43 .



" OVO (S) Electricity Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020

(continued)
17 Debtors . _
‘ 31December - 31 March
2020 o 2020
£m - £m
Amounts falling due within one year: . ] j .
Trade debtors . ' L 284.6 3377
Accrued income . ‘ : ) 3229 339.5
Provision for impairment of trade debtors and accrued income ‘ : (95.9) (67.4)
Net trade debtors and accrued income : - . ' 5116 609.8
Amounts owed by group undertakings - ) : ' 303 : 1.8
Prepayments . ‘ 16.8 . - 09
Other debtors : . : 123.0 A11.4
Corporation tax debtor . o 25 _ .26
Corporation tax - group relief receivable C . 67 - 5.1
' Derivative financial assets (see note 24) . . _ - 11.5 23.7
K 702.4 ~ 7553
 Amounts falling due after more than one year: ' A .
Deferred tax asset (see note 14). - , 909 92.8
Defined benefit pension asset (see note 25) . - 12.9 22.7

103.8 1155 -

" Provision for inipairment of trade debtors and accrued income has increased as a % of trade dcb‘tors and accrued
- income at 31 December 2020 due to additional provision recognised as a result of the impact of Covid-19.

18 Cash at bank and in hand , )
y v ) 31 December . 31 March

\ : 2020 » 2020
£m £m

Cash at bank and in hand - o - - 29
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Notes to the Financial Stafements folr the Period from 1 Api‘ril 2020 to 31 December 2020
- (continued)

19 Creditors: amounts faliing due within one year

- 31 December 31 March
v 2020 2020
) ‘ . £m- £m
Trade creditors o : 394 20.6
Accrued expenses ) : 91.1 171.1
Amounts due to group undextakings - . ' - ;s 136
Social security and other taxes : ' - : 2.6 -
Current lease liabilities (see note 21) ‘ ' . 5.1 40
Other creditors N ' ' 33.0 .- 90
Derivative financial habllltles (see note 24) ) . - 36.1
Deferred income . ' i ’ 339.5° 336.3
' ' 1,236.4 . 13145
20 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
‘ 31 December 31 March
2020 2020
. ) . £m £m
. Non-current lease liabilities (see note 21) - 194 21.1
Derivative financial liabilities (see note 24j . 12 -
20.6 21.1°

All derivative financial llablhtles held as at 31 December. 2020 have a maturity date of March 2022 and
thelefonc are classified as creditors: amounts falling due after more than one yeat
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- (continued)
21 Leases
Leases included in creditors S ’
31 December:v : 31 March
2020 2020 -
_ ) i -£m . . £m
Current lease liabilities o R ' 5.1 47
Non-current lease liabilities . ’ S 194 21.1

Lease liabilities maturity analysis .
A maruuty analysns of lease liabilities based on und;scountcd gloss cash flow is 1eponted in the table below:,

31 December 31 March

' 2020 2020

_ : o fm : £m

Less than one year . S ‘ ) . . 62 . 6.3
Between one and five years ' ‘ 129 163
Over S years A o ‘ - 10.2 11.6
Total lease liabilitics (undiscounted) . B ' 293 - 34.2

The Company leases property and motor vehicles. The balance sheet ‘amounts relating to leases are shown
within Note 16 nght—of-use assets. -

The current period mtelest expense on lease liabilities (mcludcd in interest payable and similar expenses) was
£1.6m (Yeal ended 31 March 2020: £1.3m).

Total cash outflows for leases for the peuod from 1 April 2020 to 31 Decembex 2020 was £4.7m (Yean ended 31
March 2020 £4.8m).

]
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Notes to the I‘mancnal Statements for the Period fn om 1 Apul 2020 to 31 December 2020
. . (continued). ‘

“

22 Provisions for liabilitics

Onerous
contracts and )
leases Restructuring Other
provisions provision provisions - Total
) £m -£m £m . £m
AtlApil2020 . © 565 - : 5.4 61.9
Additional provisions o 218 21.4 , 0.2 43.4
Utilised during the period ' (16.5) . (17.15 : (5.4)" A (39',0)
_ Increase due to passage of time ’ ‘ . :
or unwin’ding of discount 2.4 - - 2.4
At 31 December 2020 _ 642 43 02 . 687
Non-current liabilities a 44.0 , - : - : 44.0

Current liabilities 202 43 .02 24.7

Onerous confracts ‘

As part of the acquisition by OVO the Company entened into a Master Services Agleement (MSA) with SSE
Telecommumcatxons Limited in connection with the supply of telephony services. At the time of the acquisition,
the agreement was deemed an unfavourable contract-as the. Company considered the costs of meeting the .
obligations under the contract exceed the economic beneéfits.expected to be received from it. [t is management's
intention to terminate thc MSA at the earliest p0551ble per lOd The costs will be incurred during the lifespan of
the contract.

Onerous Iea.ses

The property leases for the closed offices have not terminated and the Company continues to incur business
rates and service charges relating to the property leases. A provision has been 1ecogmsed for the unavoidable
costs under the leases The costs will be incurred over the term of the leases .

Restructuring provision ' . :

Following OVO acquisition, the OVO Group has initiated an integration programme Wthh has resuited in the
- redundancy of a number ofemployees in the Company The restructuring plan was announced to the employees
in May 2020. The restructuring is expected to be completed by 202[ g

Other p; -ovisions : : . , . ) i
Other provisions relate to specxﬁc obligations in relation to mdustly mutuallsatlon

’
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Period from 1 Apn il 2020 to 31 December 2020

" 23 Share capital

Allotted, called up and fully paid shares

1 ordinary'share of £1.00 eaéh

" Rights, preferences and restrictions

(continued)

31 December

No.

The share has attached to it full voting, dwndend and capital distribution (including on a wmdmg up rights); it

does not confer any rights on redemption.

24 Derivatives and financial instruments

Summary fair values

" The fair values of the primary financial assets and liabilities together wnth thclr cauymg values are as follows:

Financial assets
Derivative financial assets
Trade and other debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Financial liabilities

Trade and other creditors

" Derivative financial liabilities
(Current) ..
Derivative financial liabilities
(Non-current)

Lease liabilities (current)

Lease liabilities (non-current)

31 December

2020

Carrying value

£m

1.5

662.6

(1,228.7)

(1.2)
5.1

- (19.4)

31 December

Carrying value

31 Mafch

2020

Fair value

£m

23.7
722.9

2.9

L (1,102.7)

(36.1)

)

4.7)
QL)
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Notes to the F Fmancxal Statemerits fo: the Period from 1 Apul 2020 to 31 Decemben 2020 '
. (contmued)

"24 Derivatives and financial instruments (continued)

Valuation methods and assumptions - ' ' .

Financial assets and liabilities through profit or loss :

All derivatives are classified as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy. The fair value measunements are thosc
derived from inputs, other than quoted prices, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.as '
prices) or indirectly (i.e..derived from prices). Fair values.have been detenmmed with reference to closing
market prices. '

Financial assels at amortised cost )

The fair value of financial assets is based on the expectatlon of recovery of balances. [mpaned 1ecc1vables
mainly relate to customers from .whom it is unlikely that full payment will ever be received. The primary inputs
used to.impair the receivable balances are not based on observable market data.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The fair value of trade and other creditors is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at

the market rate of interest at the balance sheet date if the effect is material. Due to the short maturities, the fair

value of the trade and.other payables approximates to their book value. The inputs used to determine the liability

are not based on observabie market data.’ '

The fair valué of lease liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash ﬂows usmg mtes cuuently avallable for
debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Récognised in profit and loss account :
- The amount of derivative re-measurement that has been lecogmsed through the profit and loss is as follows:

Period from

1 April 2020 to Year ended

" 31 December 31 March

2020 2020

. ) £m ' £m

Opening value of derivative financial liabilities ‘ (12.4) . (47.9)
Movement necogmsed through profit and 1css ) 22.7 35,5

Closing value of derivative financial liabilities (net of deri ivative assets) 10.3 (12.4)

25 Pension and other schemes

Defined contribution pension scheme

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension cost cilal -ge for the period from 1
April 2020 to 31 December 2020 represents contributions.payable by thé Company to the scheme and aimounted
to £5.0m (Year ended 31 Match 2020: £15.3m).
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Notes to the Fmanc:al Statements for the Period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020
(continued)

25 Pension and other schemes (continued)

Defined benefit pension schemes

Intr oductmn - ‘ | .
The Company sponsors a funded defined beueﬁt pension plan for quahfymg UK employees - the ovo Energy
Group of the ESPS. The scheme was established on 14 -January 2020 following the acquisition of the Company
by the OVO group in 01d€l to provide retirement benefits for ellglble company employees

" The scheni€ is sectionalised with separate sections for former members of the Southern Electricity Group of the
ESPS and former members of the Scottish Hydro-Electric Pension Scheme. The assets in each section are
ring-fenced to provide benefits solely for the members of that section.

The scheme is administered by an independént trustee, wlhich is legally separate from the Company. The trustee
is required by law to act in the interest of all felevant beneficiaries, and is responsible for the investment policy
- for the assets and day-to day administration of the benefits. Under the scheme, employees arc entitled to annual
pensions, and in some cases also lump sum benefits, on retirement at age 60 or 63 calculated with 1efe1ence to
pensionable service and final pensmnable salary. Benefits are also payable on death and following other events
such as withdrawing from active service. No other post-retirement benefits are provided to-these employees.

!
Profile of the scheme : '
The Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) mcludes benefits for current employees,’ former employees and current
pensioners. The vast majority of the DBO is attributable to current employees.

The scheme duration is an indicator of the weighted- avelage time until benefit payments are made. For the
scheme as a whole, the duration is apploxlmately 23 years.
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- Notes to the Financial Statements for the Period from 1 Apr ll 2020 to 31 Decembex 2020
(continued)

"25 Pension and other schemes (continued)

Funding nequncments

* UK legislation requires that pension schemes are funded pmdent{y The first funding valuation of 'the scheme
* since inception on 14 January 2020 has an effective date of 31 March 2020. The Company and the tmstees are
using this fundmg valuation to review the fundmg arrangements for the scheme. .

The Company and the members are paying contributions to meet the expected cost of the benefits being built up
by the members. These contributions are being reviewed as part of the funding valuation at 31 March 2020.

Risks associated with the scheme :
The scheme exposes the Company to some risks, the most significant of which are:

Asset volatility
The DBO is calculated using a dlscount rate set wnth |eference to corporate bond ylclds If assets underperform
this yield, lhlS will create a deficit. . :

The scheme holds approximately a third.of its assets in equities which, though expected to outperform cor| poiate
‘bonds in the long-term, create volatility and risk in the short-term. The allocation to glowth assets is monitored
to ensure it remains appropriate given the scheme ] l(mg—telm obJectwes

Changes in bond yields :
A decrease in corporate bond yields will incredase the value placed on the scheme's DBO for accounting
_purposes, allhough this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the »scheme‘s bond holdings.

Inflation risk
The majority of the scheme’ s DBO is linked to inflation, and higher inflation leads to a hlgher DBO (although,
in most cases, caps on the level of mﬂatlonary increases ate in place to protect against extreme inflation).

Most of the assets are either unaffected by or only loosely couelated with mﬂatlon meanmg that an increase in
inflation will also increase the deﬁc1l :

Life expectancy

The majority of the scheme’s obllgatlons are to provide benefits for the lifetime of the member, so increases in

llfe cxpectancy will result in an mcncase in the DBO.

Risk management

The Company and trustees have’ agxeed a long-term strategy for reducing investment risk as and when'

appropriate. This includes an asset-liability matching policy which aims to reduce the volatility of the funding

level of the scheme. By investing in assets such as leveraged index-linked gilts, which perform in line with the

liabilities of the scheme, the scheme is protected against inflation being higher than expected. The- trustees
. insure certain benefits which are payable on death before retirement,

Repon ting at 31 Decembe: 2020

The preliminary results of the latest funding valuation at 31 March 2020 have been adjusted to the new balance
sheet date, taking account of any material experience over the period since 31 March 2020, changes in market
conditions, and differences in the financial and demographic assumptions. The present value of the Defined
Benefit Obligation, and the relatéd current service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

- The principal assumptions used to calculate the liabilities under 1AS 19 are as follows:

-Page 51

A



ovo (S) Electricity Limited

Notcs to the Fmancnal Statements for the Per iod from 1 Apul 2020 to 31 December 2020

25 Pension and other schemes (continued)

JWam fi inancial assumptions .

(contmued)

The significant actuarial assumpuons used to determine the present value of the defined benefit obllgatlon at the

" balance sheet date are as follows

Discount rate

RPI inflation

CPl inflation -

Rate of general long-term increase in salaries

Pens;i:on increases in payment
RPI max 5% p.a.
RPI max 3% p.a.

-The financial assumptions reflect the nature and term of the scheme's liabilities.

Main demographic assumptions

Mortality base table adopted

Mortality future improvements adopted

‘Life expectancy for male currently aged
65

Life expectancy for female cuuently aged
65

_Life expectancy at 65 for male currently
aged 45

Life .expectancy at
currently aged 45

65 for female

~ 31 March

31 December
2020 2020
% %
1.40 240
2.80 " 2.40
2.40 1.80
2.90 230
2.70 - 2.40
2.20 2.00

31 December 2020
SAPS S3 Tables

"All" for males and "Middle" = -

for females

Scaled by 105% for the SSE
Section and by 109% for SSE
"Hydro Section

CMI 2019 projections model
with Sk parameter of 7.0 and A
parameter of 0.25, and

long-term improvement rate of:
1.25% p.a.

217

234
23.0

24.9
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31 March 2020
SAPS 83 Tables

"All" for males and "Middle"
for females

" Scaled by 105% for the SSE
Section and by 109% for SSE
Hydro Section

CMI 2019 projections model
with Sk parameter of 7.0 and A
parameter of 0.25, and
long-term improvement rate of
’ 1.25% p.a.

21.7
1234
23.0
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Notes to the Fmancnal Statements for the Period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020

25 Pension and other schemes (continued)

“GMP equalisati-o‘n

Cash commutation

Scheme assets

(continued) -

" Cost of equalising benefits for
_differences in GMPs between

males and females taken to be
around 0.2% of liabilities

Allowance made for members -

to take maximum permitted
" lump sum at retitement by
commuting pension based on
current commutation terms

Changes in the fair value of scheme assets are as follows:,

Fair value at start of period

Interest income.on scheme assets

" Remeasurement gains on scheme assets
Contributions by the employer .

Net benefits paid out ‘

Net increasc in assets from bulk transfers

Fair value at end of period

Actual veturn on scheme’s assets”

Interest income on scheme assets
Remeasurement. gains on scheme assets

Actual return on scheme assets

.'lhe pension scheme has not mvested in any of the Companys own ﬁnanclal instruments ov in properties or

other assets used by the Company.

31 December

Cost of equalising benefits for

~ differences in GMPs between

males and females taken to be
around 0.2% of liabilities

Allowance made for members
to take maximum permitted -
lump sum at retirement by
commuting pension based on
current commutation terms

- 31 March .
2020, 2020
£m £m
78.2 ' -
1.3 . _ -
15.7 -
5.9 0.8
(2.9) . -
9.7 77.4
107.9 ' 78.2
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
£m . : £m .
1.3 -
15.7 ' -
17.0° S
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(continued)

25 Pension and other schemes (continued)

Analysis of assets .

The-major categories of scheme assets are as follows: -

Equities

Index-linked gilts
Corporate bonds

Cash/net current assets
Total market value of assets

Reconciliation of funded status to balance sheet

-Fair value of scheme assets
Present value of funded Defined Benefit Obligation.
Funded status

Asset recognised in the balance sheet

Scheme liabilities

Changes in the present value of scheme liabilities are as follows:

Present value at start of period

Current service cost .

Past service cost (including curtailments)'g

Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial asspmpﬁons
Interest expense on Defined Benefit Obligation ‘

Net benefits paid out )

Net increase in liabilities from bulk transfers

" Present value at end of period

Analysed as: .

Present value of scheme liabilities arising from wholly or partly funded
schemes’ . '
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31 December 31 M‘ar‘ch
2020 2020
£m £m
348 -
35.3 -
37.0 -

0.8 78.2
107.9 78.2
" 31 December 31 March
2020 2020
£m £m
107.9 782
(95.0) (55.5)
12.9 22,7
12.9 22.7
" 31 December 31 March
2020 2020
£m £m
(55.5) ’ -
(4.5) (1.2)
3.6) T
26.4) 02
(1.0) -
2.9 -
. (6.9) . (54.5)
(95.0) (55.5)
(95.0) (55.5)
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Notes to bth'e Financial Statements for the Period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020

(continued)
25 Pension and other schemes (continued)

Amounts recognised in the profit and loss account

Amounts i‘écognised in operating profit/(loss) .
Current service cost
Past service cost (including curtailments)

Recognised in arriving-at 6perating profit/(loss)

Amounts recognised in interest receivable and similar income
Interest on net defined benefit assets :

Total recognised in the profit and loss account

Amounts taken to the Statement of Compreheiisive Income

Return on scheme assets in excess of that recognised in net interest

Actuarial losses due to changés in financial assumptions
Actuarial gains due to bulk transfers

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Amounts recognised in equity ' /

Bulk transfer from parent company

Amounts recognised in equity

Sensitivity analysis

Page 55

. Period from
1 April 2020 to

Year ended

31 Décember " 31 March
2020 ‘ 2020°
£m £m
4.5 1.2
3.6 -
8.1 1.2
(0.3) -
78.

1.2

Period from

I April 2020 to
31 December
2020

£m .

(5.7
26.4
(28)

" Year ended

31 March
2020
£m

7.9

Period from

‘1 April 2020 to

Year ended

31 December 31 March
2020 2020

£m £m

- (23.1)

- (23.1)

" A sensitivity analysis for the principal assumptions used to measure scheme liabilities is set out below:
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(continued)

25 Pension and other schemes (continued)

31 December . 31 March

- - 2020- o i 2020 .
Adjustment to discount . +0.25% 0.0% -0.25% +0.25% 0.0% - -0.25%
rate £m £m £m - £m - £m £m
Present value of total ' - : :
obligation L - - 5.4 _(3.0) - 3.2
' ' 31 December . ‘ 31 March
. . 2020 T 2020
Adjustment to rate of +0.25% - 0.0% -0.25% +0.25% - 0.0% -0.25%
inflation £m . E&m £m Em - £m - £m
Present value of total . ' o g
obligation 5.3 C- .- 3.0 - - (3.1)
‘ 31 December - . 31 March
. ‘ . 2020 . ' - 2020

Adjustment to rate of O+ 0.1% . 0.0% -01% -  +0.25% 0.0% -0.25%
salary growth ' £m £m . £m. "Em £m £m
Present value of total . : . '
obligation ‘ .- .- - 1.3 - (1.3)

31 December . 31 March
. 2020 ’ : ' 2020
Adjustment to mortality +1 Year None -1 Year +1 Year None -1 Year
age rating assumption £m £m £m : £fm" £m “£m
Present value of total : S : o '
obligation ‘ 3.5 - : - - C - ' -

26 Contingent liabilities o .

The UK Government has set out a requirement for energy suppliers to take all reasonable steps to roll out smart
meters to all of their domestic customers by 31 December 2021 (previously 30 June 2021). Failure to 'achieve -
the annual installation targets will be a breach of a supplier’s licence which could subject OVO to financial
penalties imposed by Ofgem. OVO-continues to install smart meters in all regions in line with regulations and
has not recognised any contingent:liability in regards to non-compliance with this requirement.

27 Related party transactlons

In accondancc with the exemption avallable under FRS 101 transactions with other wholly owned undcn takings
within OVO Group Ltd group have not been disclosed within these financial statements. :

‘
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Notes to the Fmancml Statements for the Period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020
. (continued)

28 Parent and ultimate parent undeftaki_ng

The Company’s immediate parent is .OVO'.(S) Energy Services Limited.

“The ultimate parent is Imagination Industries Ltd which is the ]argeét group of undertakings for which group
financial statements are drawn up and of which the Company is a member. These financial statements are
available upon request from the registered office at 140-142 Kensington Church Stleet London, England W8
4BN. . : .

The smallest group of undertakings for whlch group financial statements are drawn up and of which the
Company is a member is OVO Finance Ltd, which are available upon request from the registered office shown
in Note 1. .

The ultimate controlling party is Stephen Fitzpatrick.
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